BLUE LAKE PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING AGENDA

Monday, November 15, 2021
7:00 P.M.

Community Center - 111 Greenwood Road
(Skinner Store Building behind City Hall)

LOCATION: In accordance with the Governor's Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-28-20, the
Flanning Commission of the City of Blue Lake shall conduct the Planning Commission
Meeting by teleconference via Zoom, Public input can be given to the Commission by

emailing cityclerk@bluelake.ca.gov untit 4:30 p.m. on Monday November 15, 2021,

Public input will be facilitated by Zoom at the following meeting link:
https://us02webh.zoom.us/(/832335201887pwd=Mnl1RStnSGZpWk4zWGVQRHEYC 107209

Meeting |D: 832 3352 0188 Passcode: 223980

1. Approval of Minutes: September 20, 2021.

2. Public Input — The Public is invited to present petitions, make announcements, or
provide other information fo the Planning Commission that is refevant to the scope of
authority of the City of Blue Lake that is not on the Agenda. The Planning Commission
may provide up to 15 minutes for this public input session. To assure that each
individual presentation is heard, the Planning Commission may uniformly impose time
limjtations of 3 minutes to each individual presentation. The public will be given the
opportunity to address items that are on the agenda at the time the Planning
Commission takes up each specific agenda item.

3. Approval of Agenda

Discussion [/ Action:

4. Public Hearing/Planning Commission Action: 025-141-012/2021 Minor
Subdivision for John Madjarac of parcel 025-141-012 (118 and 200 Chartin
Road) to create one new lot. Each proposed parcel is already developed with a
single-family residence. This project is categorically exempt from CEQA per
§15315 (Class 15) of the CEQA Guidelines exempting division of properties in
urbanized areas into four or fewer parcels when certain specifications can be
met.

5. Planning Commission Action: 312-161-018/2020 Site Plan Approval for the City
of Blue Lake for development of a bike park on the north side of Taylor Way in
the Powers Creek District (No address assigned/APN 312-161-018). This project
is categorically exempt from CEQA per §15332 (Class 32) of the CEQA
Guidelines exempting projects characterized as in-fill development when
certain criteria can be met.

6. Miscellaneous Planner ltems.



7. Upcoming Planning Commission Meetings for the next 3 months will be on
December 20", 2021, January 17t", 2022, and February 215, 2022.

8. Adjournment by 9:00 pm unless extended by the Planning Commission.

A request for disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, may be made by a person with a disability who requires a modification or
accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting, by contacting City Manager
Amanda Mager, (707) 668-5655, at least 24 hours prior to the commencement of the

meeting.



City of Blue Lake
Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
September 20, 2021

The Blue Lake Planning Commission Meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m.

Commissioners Present: Earl Eddy, Richard Platz, Matthew Schang, Cort Pryor, and Robert
Chapman

Commissioners Absent: None

Staff Present: City Manager Amanda Manager and City Planner Garrison Rees
Staff Absent: Planning Commission Secretary Cheryl Turner

Public Present: James Long, Patty Long

1. Approval of Minutes: July 19, 2021
a. Vice-Chair Platz recused himself since he was not present at the July meeting.
b. Commissioner Schang was not present at this point in the meeting to vote.
¢. Motion (Pryor, Chapman) to approve July 19, 2021 minutes as written.
d. Motion passed (3-0)

2. Public Input on Non-Agenda Items
a. None received.

3. Approval of the Agenda
a. Commissioner Schang was not present at this point in the meeting to vote.
b. Motion (Chapman, Pryor) to approve agenda.
c. Motion passed unanimously (4-0).

Discussion/ Action:

4. Planning Commission Action: 025-013-003 /2021 Exception to the Residential Devel-
opment Standards for James & Patricia Long to allow a metal roof on an existing resi-
dence at 129 Acacia Drive (APN 025-065-013).

a. Planner Rees presented the Commissioners a summary of the Staff Report.

b. Planner Rees explained that the residential development standards in the Municipal
Code do not allow metal roofs as a roofing material uniess an exception is received
from the Planning Commission. Planner Rees explained that the applicant desires a
metal roof for fire safety purposes and because of its longevity. Planner Rees noted
that the justification provided by the applicant focused on identifying other structures
in the City with metal roofs to demonstrate neighborhood compatibility, which is the
primary criteria for an exception,

¢. Commissioner Chapman recommended that the residential development standards be
revised to aliow metal roofs and expressed hope that this would be the last applica-

1



g.

tion for a metal roof exception.

Planner Rees indicated that city staff could work on this amendment to the Municipal
Code as part of the work being done with funding from the Local Early Action Plan-
ning (LEAP) grant program. Planner Rees noted that it would be important to specify
the types of metal roofing that would be allowed, since some metal roofing material
may not be desirable on residences in the City.

. The applicant, James Long, explained to the Commission his reasoning for wanting to

place a metal roof on his residence. This included that the City is surrounded by forest
land, which is designated as a high fire hazard severity zone.

Motion (Platz/Chapman) to approve Resolution No. 3-2021, Resolution of the Plan-
ning Commission of the City of Blue Lake approving a Request for an Exception to the
Residential Development Standards for James & Patricia Long to allow a metal roof on
their residence. '

Motion passed (5-0).

5. Information Only ltem: 312-161-018/2020 Review of the updated plans for the bike
park proposed at the end of Taylor Way in the Powers Creek District.

a.
b.

Planner Rees presented the Commissioners a summary of the Staff Report,

Planner Rees explained that the design for the bike park in the Powers Creek District
has been updated since the last time it was discussed with the Planning Commission
as an information only item. Planner Rees highlighted some of the changes on the cur-
rent plan for the bike park. Planner Rees explained that for the project to proceed, it
will require Site Plan Approval from the Planning Commission.

The Commissioners discussed the current design and asked several questions of staff,
Commissioner Pryor expressed excitement about the project and asked the following
questions: 1) will there be seating for spectators such as bleachers; 2) what would be
the allowable use hours for the bike park; 3} what kind of lighting is proposed for the
bike park; and 4} would there be space for food truck/stands adjacent to the bike
park.

Planner Rees noted that a few benches are proposed for spectators, but more exten-
sive seating (for example, bleachers) is not currently proposed. Planner Rees indicat-
ed that it is possible that nighttime use may be allowed if the park could be adequate-
ly illuminated to provide safe use of the park. Planner Rees indicated that any pro-
posed outdoor lighting would have to comply with the lighting performance stand-
ards in the Opportunity zone. Planner Rees indicated that space for food
trucks/stands is not currently shown on the plans but could be incorporated later.
Chair Eddy inquired about who would be responsible for maintenance of the park.
Manager Mager explained that the bike park would be part of the City’s park system
and the City would cooperate with local organizations {for example, Redwood Coast
Mountain Bike Association) on maintenance of the park. Manager Mager indicated
this arrangement would be similar the management of the Rodeo Grounds.

Planner Rees explained that the next steps are for city staff to send out project refer-
rals and ultimately bring the project to the Planning Commission as a Site Plan Ap-
proval application at an upcoming meeting.

The Commissioners indicated they are supportive of the project and look forward to
reviewing it at an upcoming meeting.

2



. Miscellaneous Planner Items

a. City Manager Mager updated the Commissioners on the potential development of a
mixed-use project in the Powers Creek District.

. Upcoming Planning Commission Meetings for the next 3 months will be on August 16th,
September 20%, and October 18t, 2021.
a. Commissioner Schang indicated that he would not be available for the October meet-
ing.
b. The other Commissioners indicated they should be available for the upcoming meet-
ings.

. Adjournment by 9:00 pm unless extended by the Planning Commission.
a. Motion (Chapman, Schang) to adjourn.

b. Motion passed unanimously {5-0).

¢. Meeting adjourned at 7:52 p.m.



CITY OF BLUE LAKE

Post Office Box 458, 111 Greenwood Road, Blue Lake, CA 95525
Phone 707.668.5655 Fax 707.668.5916

STAFF REPORT

DATE: November 11, 2021

APPLICATION #: #025-141-012/2021

APPLICANT: John Madjarac

PROPERTY OWNER: John Madjarac

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The applicant is proposing a Minor Subdivision of parcel 025-141-012 (118 and 200 Chartin Road)
to create one new lot. Parcel 025-141-012 1s currently 17,641 s.f. and Proposed Parcel 1 would be
approximately 8,092 s.f. and Proposed Parcel 2 would be approximately 9,549 s.f. Each proposed
parcel is already developed with a single-family residence. The project proposes access
improvements including paved driveways on each lot and 3 off-sireet parking spaces (see attached
Tentative Parcel Map and aerial photograph for more information).

PROJECT LOCATION: 118 and 200 Chartin Road

ASSESSORS PARCEL #: 025-141-012

ZONING: Planned Development Residential (PD-R)

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: Moderate Low Density Residential (MD)
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Categorically exemnpt per CEQA Guidelines Section 15315 (Class 15) exempting division of
properties in urbanized areas into four or fewer parcels when certain specifications can be met. This
project meets those specifications since the subdivision is in conformance with the General Plan and
Municipal Code, no variances or exceptions are required, all services and access fo the proposed

parcels to local standards are available, the parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel
within the previous 2 years, and the parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent.

Madjarac Minor Subdivision 1 - 11/112021



SITE CHARACTERISTICS:

The project site is approximately 17,861 s.f. and is relatively {lat. The site contains two single-
family residential units and two storage sheds. Vegetation occurring at the site includes grasses,
shrubs, and several trees. The project site is located directly south of the intersection of Chartin
Road and Gely Street. To the north of the project site is single-family and multi-family residential
development. To the east is single-family residential development and Powers Creek. To the south
is single-family residential development and Powers Creek. To the west is the Gymkhana Field. The
project site is currently served by all utilities and services. Access for the site is off Chartin Road.

Aerial Photo of the Poj Site
STAFF COMMENTS:

This project was sent out for referral to the City Manager, Public Works Department, Building
Official, City Engineer, and Volunteer Fire District.

City Manager
The City Manager responded to the referral stating that she does not have any concerns about the

project.

Madjarac Minor Subdivision 2 1171172021



Public Works Department
The Public Works Department responded to the referral stating that the property is already served
by water and sewer and they do not have any concerns about the project.

Building Official
Comments were not received from the Building Official within the requested referral period.

City Engineer

The City Engineer responded to the referral with the following comments:

1} All proposed subdivision improvements (onsite and offsite) shall be reviewed and approved by
the City Engineer.

2) Paved driveways are required for vehicular access to both proposed parcels. The driveways shall
be constructed according to the City’s design specifications.

3) The driveway aprons within the public right-of-way for each proposed parcel must be ADA
compliant.

4) Due to the proposed alignment of the driveway on Proposed Parcel 1, it is recommended that a
bollard or other protective structure be installed to protect the northeast comer of the residence from
vehicular collision.

5) The Parcel Map should identify utility easements that cross the new parcei line and existing
parcel lines.

6) The Parcel Map should identify the source and back up information for the “Found Monuments”
shown on the Tentative Map.

7) It is recommended that the sewer connection from Proposed Parcel 1 to the City sewer main in
the City-owned parcel to the west (APN 025-141-001) should be covered by an easement granted
by the City.

The requirements of the City Engineer have been included as conditions of approval for the
proposed project, except for the comments noted as recommendations.

Volunteer Fire District
The Volunteer Fire District responded to the referral stating they have no concerns about the
project,

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY:

The project site has a General Plan Designation of Moderate Low Density Residential (MD). The
project proposes fo split a property with two residence so that each residence will be on its own lot.
Since the proposed parcels are designated for residential development and already contain existing
residences, the proposed project is found to be consistent with the Blue Lake General Plan.

ZONING CODPE COMPLIANCE:

APN 025-141-012 has a Zoning Classification of PD-R (Planned Development Residential), which
is contained in Scction 17.16.080 of the City’s Municipal Code. As stated in Section 17.16.080,
“The PD-R or Planned Development Residential Zone is intended to permit a more creative
approach in the residential development of land resulting in a more efficient, attractive, desirable

Madjarac Minor Subdivision 3 117117202



use of open area; to permit flexibility in design, including pedestrian and vehicular pathways, and

placement of off-street parking areas. The PD-R Zone is further intended to realize best the
potential of the sites characterized by special features of shape, topography, or size.”

The project proposes to split a lot with two residences so that each residence will be on its own lot.

The project requires compliance with the development standards in the City’s Municipal Code (e.g.,

minimum lot area, minimum ot width, maximuom density, setbacks, etc.). Table 2 provides a

comparison of the required development standards and the proposed Minor Subdivision design. As

indicated in Table 1, the project complies with the applicable development standards.

Table 1. Municipal Code Development Standards and Minor Subdivision Design

. ExiStihg:P_é_rtcl'

APN 025-141-012

. Proposed . -
.- Parcels:

Proposed Parcel |

Proposed Parcel 2

. Zoning
-Classification .

Planned Development Residential (PDR)

Planned Development Residential (PDR)

" 'Minimum Lot
. Area! -

6,000 s 1.

6,000 s.f.

Proposed -
- - LotArea .

8,092 s.f.

9,549 5.1,

.- Minimum-
Lot Width? -

40 ft

40 ft

* ‘Preposed Lot -
o Width

62 ft

764 £

" Maximum Lot
 Depth-to-Width-
"~ Ratio®

31

[P
—

"~ Proposed Lot
. Depth-to-Width
.Ratio -

2.1:1

1.7:1

- Maximum.
.- Density®t

1 dwelling unit
per 6,000 s.f.

1 dwelling unit
per 6,000 s.1.

—Proposed
.. Density

1 dwelling unit existing

1 dwelling unit existing

- Maximum
* Ground =
- Coverage!

40%

40%

Proposed -
" Ground
Coverage. .

<40%

<40%

- Required
Setbacksh*

Side: 4 ft

Side: 4 ft

~Froposed
. -Sethacks™*

Side: >4 £

Side: >4 fi

1. Devclopment Standards per Municipal Code Scction 17.16.080.
2. Lot width standard per Municipal Code Section 17.24.150.

3. Lot depth-to-width ratio standard per Municipal Code Section 16.12.100.
4.

Side yard setbacks from the newly created property line is the only relevant setback requirement
for the proposed Minor Subdivision.

Off street parking requirements are specified m Municipal Code Section 17.24.100 (Off-Street

Parking Facilities). The number of off-street parking spaces required for dwelling units is 1 for each

Madjarae Minor Subdivision

4

11/11/202%




unit containing 1 or fewer bedrooms and 2 for each unit containing more than I bedroom. The
existing residence on Proposed Parcel 2 has more than 1 bedroom and, therefore, requires 2 off-
street parking spaces. The existing residence on Proposed Parcel 2 has 1 or fewer bedrooms and,
therefore, requires 1 off-street parking space. As shown on the Tentative Parcel Map, the applicant
is proposing to provide the number of off-street parking spaces required by the City’s Municipal
Code. Pursuant to Municipal Code Section 17.24.100.C.5, “The parking area, aisles and access
drives shall be paved as fo provide a durable, dustiess surface, except that an alternative durable,
dustless surface may be approved by the City Planner, and shall be so graded and drained as to
dispose of surface water without damage to private or public properties, streets or alleys.” Based
on this requirement, both of the proposed parcels must have off-street parking spaces and driveways
that are durable and dustless (e.g., concrete, asphalt, permeable pavers, etc.). This has been
included as a condition of approval for the project.

SUBDIVISION CODE COMPLIANCE:

The Tentative Parcel Map prepared for this Minor Subdivision project has been reviewed by City
staff. As indicated in the discussion of staff comments and zoning code compliance above, several
conditions of approval are recommended for the Parcel Map and subdivision improvements. In
compliance with these conditions, City staff has been determined that the project would be
consistent with Title 16 (Subdivisions) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map
Act.

In reviewing a Tentative Parcel Map, the Planning Commission may impose any or all of, but not
limited to, the following (Municipal Code Section 16.20.010(H)}):

Additional soils and/or engineering geology studics.

1. Frontage improvements
2. On-site improvements.
3. Off-site improvements.
4. Dedications.

5. Applicable fees.

6.

7.

Additional traffic studies.

Section 16.20.020 of the Blue Lake Subdivision Code contains the requirements for preparation and
filing of Parcel Maps. A Parcel Map is defined by the Blue Lake Subdivision Code as “4 map
prepared in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act of the
State of California, which is intended to be placed on record in the office of the County Recorder of
Humboldt County. A Pavcel Map is required for all Minor Subdivision.” The requirement to prepare
and file a Parcel Map has been included as a condition of approval for the project (see below). This
requires “...an accurate and complete survey of the land to be subdivided...by a Registered Civil
Engineer or Professional Land Surveyor...”

Section 16.28.090 of the Blue Lake Subdivision Code contains the requirements for Subdivision
Improvement Agreements. This section indicates that after approval of the Tentative Parcel Map
and prior to approval of the Parcel Map, the subdivider shall enter into a Subdivision Improvement

Madjarac Minar Subdivision 5 11/11/2021



Agreement with the City. The Subdivision Improvement Agreement shall be prepared by the City
Attorney, approved by the City Engineer and Planning Commission, and adopted by the City
Council. To ensure the subdivision improvements will be constructed, the subdivider shall post 1} a
performance bond, instrument of credit, lien on the property, letter of credit, cash or other form of
security acceptable to the City Council in the amount of 100% of the total estimated improvement
costs; 2) a similar security in the amount of 100% of the labor, materials, and equipment costs; and
3) a similar security in the amount of 10% of the costs of improvements to guarantee workmanship
for one year. These security interests shall be approved by the City Attorney as to form, by the City
Engineer as to sufficiency, and accepted by the City Council. The requirement to enter into a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City has been included as a condition of approval for
the project (see below).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

If the Planning Commission wishes to approve this project application, then specific findings that the
project is consistent with the City's General Plan, Municipal Code, and the Subdivision Map Act
should be made. Conditions of approval, addressing the issues contained herein and in the referral
letters, should be required.

Staff recommends approval of the project, as submitted with the following Conditions of Approval:

1. Applicant shall reimburse the City for all fees involved in processing this application,
inchuding any work necessary to ensure compliance with the project conditions of approval
and the City’s Municipal Code.

2. Applicant shali pay all other fees required for a subdivision application according to the
City’s current fee schedule. This includes, but is not limited to, the parkland and
recreational facilities fee for each additional parcel created and the drainage facilities
improvement fee for cach additional parcel created.

3. Approval is for the project as illustrated on the Tentative Parcel Map (dated March 2021)
that is attached to this staff report.

4. The applicant shall cause to be filed a parcel map showing monumentation of all property
comers to the satisfaction of the City Engineer in compliance with Section 16.20.020 (Parcel
Maps) of Title 16 (Subdivisions) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code. Subdivision map
checking fees shall be paid in full at the time the Parcel Map is submitted for checking.
County Recorder fees shall be paid prior to submittal of the map to the County Recorder for
filing. The Parcel Map must be prepared by a Land Surveyor licensed by the State of
California, or by a Civil Engineer registered by the State of California who is authorized to
practice land surveying. The applicant shall submit to the City Engineer three (3} copies of
the Parcel Map as filed by the County Recorder.

5. After approval of the Tentative Parcel Map and prior to approval of the Parcel Map, the
subdivider shall enter into a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City in
conformance with Section 16.28.090 (Agreement, Bond, and Cash Deposits for
Improvements) of Title 16 (Subdivision) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code. The Subdivision
Improvement Agreement shall be prepared by the City Attorney, approved by the City

Madjarac Minor Subdivision é 11/11/2021%



Engineer and Planning Commission, and adopted by the City Council. To ensure the
subdivision improvements will be constructed, the subdivider shall post 1) a performance
bond, instrument of credit, lien on the property, letter of credit, cash or other form of
security acceptable to the City Council in the amount of 100% of the total estimated
improvement costs; 2) a similar security in the amount of 100% of the labor, materials, and
equipment costs; and 3) a similar security in the amount of 10% of the costs of
improvements to guarantee workmanship for one year. These security interests shall be
approved by the City Attorney as to form, by the City Engineer as to sufficiency, and
accepted by the City Council.

6. All easements that encumber or are appurtenant to the subdivision shall be shown
graphically on the Parcel Map. Those easements that do not have a metes and bounds
description shall be noted on the Parcel Map and shown as to their approximate location.
The City Engineer shall determine whether the easements shall be for public and/or private
purposes. Other easements may be required which cannot be determined from the Tentative
Parcel Map at this time. The need for these additional easements may be determined after a
review of improvement plans by the City Engineer.

7. The applicant must meet all requirements of the various City departments including, but not
limited to, the City Manager, Public Works Department, City Engineer, Building
Department, and Planning Department.

8. The applicant must meet all requirements of the City Engineer, including the following:

A) All proposed subdivision improvements (onsite and offsite) shall be reviewed and
approved by the City Engineer.

B} Paved driveways are required for vehicular access to both proposed parcels. The
driveways shall be constructed according to the City’s design specifications.

C) The driveway aprons within the public right-of-way for each proposed parcel must
be ADA compliant.

D) The Parcel Map should identify utility easements that cross the new parcel line and
existing parcel lines.

E) The Parcel Map should identify the source and back up information for the “Found
Monuments” shown on the Tentative Map.

9. Pursuant to Municipal Code Section 17.24.100.C.5, “The parking area, aisles and access
drives shall be paved as to provide a durable, dustless surface, except that an alternative
durable, dustless surface may be approved by the City Planner, and shall be so graded and
drained as to dispose of surface water without damage fo private or public properties,
streets or alleys.” Based on this requirement, both of the proposed parcels must have off-
street parking spaces and driveways that are durable and dustless {e.g., concrete, asphalt,
permeable pavers, etc.).

INFORMATIONAL NOTES:

The notes below include recommendations from the various City departments that are considered
best practice.

Madjarac Minor Subdivision 7 11/11/2021



1. Due to the alignment of the proposed driveway on Proposed Parcel 1, it is recommended
that a bollard or other protective structure be installed to protect the northeast corner of the
residence from vehicular collision.

2. It is recommended that the sewer connection from Proposed Parcel 1 to the City sewer main

in the City-owned parcel to the west (APN 025-141-001) should be covered by an easement
granted by the City.

Madjarac Minor Subdivision 8 11/11/2021



¥ JEEEQERL0L FUOYS « GLEE-GFR LD
1Z556 ¥ O e B (RN

140 L AT A1 =1 3s
ETOE g ]
WESYDATYD JO ALYLS "ALNNOS LATCESNH
1A% 3019 40 ALID IHLHY
NYIOIHIN LTTNAH
ITH NTL M HGILTS

IvueTavi NHO!

an}

dYW SALLVYANIL
TNOLrISR0 ey

werSuateuntiawiodga e belgng
TPEGAA AL
156008 LD} -
11556 w1 “Eituy
E #UNE "3 LA waspe] porg
Aty SUphanang am Fuad  FRLgaY BT
EeBuging attsf  jaraSy

hn sy
s

Am. ddrj  ERYEQas Bl
el [rushiay buawedalanag prunTy  (Buiveg

SIOBE6E-A0L I3GWNN ALDLL
42556 Y2 axE) anrg
12208 rd esaapy Bupey
SLS5E v aLE)AIng
PEOENILRLD GOZ FRIL Otapy ang
Z10-LFL-ET0  KdY
FhTlaTy el  TauMg

¥1¥0 1D30ue

GELG =H £Y
umsfiuy =g ‘N Avsa

qQLYG

AINE

ABENE F|Y ¢ b FIRTE 5 PUT
URINAEDR R F3PUA 50 Ag pardaad s e iy L

ANZNILYLS S H0AIAUNS

s

L paki g Alrpe s 415
Ly Aupcding Supdancng 14am 11010¢ 04 1 pug 3L A
paprrosd LOIrwrul 0d PP LYoyt T fugnTIo)
IPTON P 2505 SUT S puresSragua Bunsg

“ROZLEVE Ok 45y

WY FITQ STA #1 LOEf QD §1 WEnipe Sl
LR LE G0 NORRY UMSYE SROLENT B 200 1y iy
FelFL BT AR QAWK I RARD U0 ) S EE] __ﬁm
FRENESCE GOO-RErOS0 U pid (1 PagaLlsdng

FUN LD L, T U S W ey PRIt PLE
FRIE 3 IR RO B4 BE [ 19 DDA LE L
PALEY AR GF QLAWN A0E TR RS | 20 E ATRArGay
Ll Bulhaaing 74, Auiog A pranmped Asdint ppel

B L gty Loy | ik uaeoyT b3 Aydeafadop

ou Lo xy LA f

PiTS ELOE/G/ Y BT ARLEZ01IDLI QR

O 282 hurdino AL L EUenEy

AIERpY Aq 100 g AOEL ALFU|ILTL At ¥ RS LROYE
PRI LD VL 20T A T # PUT 1| ATELnGE

“Spsanid sy o) Juarripe Aampas
30 UG LUV O UMGEY 1T SHI {03 BamanaIe
10 ABLIZENG FUGITEY VR AGARIRAR, S0 QN

L0 T0% ek
Ty L f ded Y00) 4 3 BRI IA00L MRy S
E3ad2ad ] LONEFUNG] OF DRGHL (DA
T w0 S8 Arw [ M L A U AL MR dyy

LAk KDLTRLEAIS GRG0 pauer

T PUE FUFT #R O AT P61 AR BEID 5 1SAVLDU
3 0] AU D gy B

Bk DBYS YIAT PUE LED Tf) B SIAEOIE By Tieghdl)
L5 b 3 3 At e Jravict ld paus v [sastd ay]

WL AL T patadasd 5|
LOLIIELOR 4530 DU 1A "ARIALD WA 41 48] N30
Flrs Bu:SEIg AL #G 0] PEESE0ID 2R ShAlE 0N

“HRIARIRA) AL ADUIT € 4L PRIRERNID AZTRILE
BLIFNRD PO YITT ATOH WUTHZ B #
s[wed BAEERId 351 €5 NSV CLLD- 14 1-520 Nav j0
LOJSMAA RS PYELIAE 7 $2IESEMD| || &6 AMIRILIY M)

STLON L3N0ud

T

0

GREFELI9T "]
GilLrE-II0 M
1RL HRITY BT U0 AR

SO MOV WEECN,

nmuﬁq n;ﬂw.uun—

IV 220~ S5 6¥S6
2 24 035040%

FHOCL
N ALNFAGHS S0

£650F 12661 00
Zh0-1%1-520 NdY, -
Jrae(pli Jo spuy

i,

/I 4 Bl
UK

STV BL'O ~ 4 TE0
| THIEY Q350408
treieusa gl

sl
wmy Yz

N
G\V\\é&i

TP PN

L0 v gL
FHRIRTA LT AST LY
ARDAY NI ELFITANYLTYS
EEN AR EFL )

WL A

MM T

A e AkEd
LLoRE s DS Lo SR T
TN g

LI RIS
EINIO4NTL Jal3E1}
vl aiee

1hH SC‘VEJ_;_.—G!_: Lk
TN ERLAT G RN

Eaakar]

I8 EANIE

TuIDLNDT ONCOT SHLLYE
MELYIOT KPS DTSONR

FESTO RV LR T 0

ST RV NG

ENITO SN

INATHILNTI AW, 50 Lvilfe
TINY ALY IO LAY
AT 0T OO
[PV I W R T
LNIANNG A3 QN

:I‘éz
¥

P H

FWIS JIHID

L ERLED]

WIS 241 TE SANT LU
RELIS Sk

-~




RESOLUTION NO. 4-2021

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BLUE LAKE
APPROVING A MINOR SUBDIVISION APPLICATION FOR JOHN MADJARAC

WHEREAS, John Madjarac filed an application dated June 7, 2021 for the approval of a
Tentative Parcel Map for a Minor Subdivision in the Planned Development Residential (PD-R)
zone off of Chartin Road that will create one (1) new lot from an existing parcel commonly
known as APN# 025-141-012 (118 and 200 Chartin Road). Application materials include the
Tentative Parcel Map (dated March 2021); and

WHEREAS, City planning staff has reviewed the submitted application and evidence
and has referred the application and evidence to involved reviewing City departments for site
inspections, comments and recommendations; and

WHEREAS, after due notice of public hearing, the matter came on regularly for hearing
before the Blue Lake Planning Commission on November 15, 2021; and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Planning Commission of the City of Blue
Lake as follows:

1. The Planning Commission finds that the project is categorically exempt pursuant
Section 15313 (Class 15) of the City’s duly adopted CEQA Guidelines, exempting division of
properties in urbanized areas into four or fewer parcels when certain specifications are met.
Specifically, the Planning Commission finds as follows:

A. The proposed division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning.

B. No variances or exceptions are required.

C. All services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are
available.

D. The parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within the last
two years.

E. The parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent.

F. The project does not result in any changes in land use or density.

G. No significant environmental impacts are anticipated for this project.

2. The Planning Commission finds, in accordance with Section 16.20.010(G) of

Title 16 (Subdivision) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code and Government Code scction 66474, as
follows:

A. The proposed map is consistent with applicable general and specific plans
as specified in Government Code Section 65451,



RESOLUTION NO. 4-2021

B. The design or improvements required of the proposed subdivision is
consistent with applicable Plan, Zoning Ordinances and/or Specific Plans
of the City of Blue Lake.

C. The site is physically suitable for the type and density of development,

D. As a result of a public hearing on the environmental issues of the project,
the design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely
to cause substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably
injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. Development of the site will be in
accordance with current federal, state, and local environmental laws.

E. No public health problems have been identified as a result of the design of
the subdivision or types of improvements proposed.

F. Neither the design of the subdivision nor the type of improvements will
conflict with easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through
or use of, property within the proposed subdivision as provided in
Government Code Section 66474.

G. Discharge of waste from the proposed project into the existing community
sewer system will conform to requirements by the California Regional
Quality Control Board, Northcoast Region.

3. The Planning Commissions finds that the proposed subdivision, as conditioned, is
in substantial conformance with Title {6 (Subdivisions) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code and
the Subdivision Map Act.

4, Except as otherwise herein provided, the findings of the Staff Report prepared by
the City Planner and dated November 11, 2021, is hereby adopted as the finding of the Planning
Commission.

5. The Planning Commission of the City of Blue Lake hereby approves the Minor
Subdivision for John Madjarac, subject to the conditions set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto
and made a part hereof, and as set forth in the Tentative Parcel Map, which is marked as Exhibit
“B”, attached hercto and made a part hereof.

INTRODUCED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED this 15" day of November 2021, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NAYS:

ABSENT:



RESOLUTION NO. 4-2021

ABSTAIN:

Chairman, Planning Commission,
City of Blue Lake

ATTEST:

Secretary, Planning Commission



EXHIBIT “A”
To Resolution 4-2021

Conditions of Approval

Applicant shall reimburse the City for all fees involved in processing this application,
including any work necessary to ensure compliance with the project conditions of
approval and the City’s Municipal Code.

Applicant shall pay all other fees required for a subdivision application according to the
City’s current fee schedule. This includes, but is not limited to, the parkland and
recreational facilities fee for each additional parcel created and the drainage facilities
improvement fee for each additional parcel created.

Approval is for the project as iflustrated on the Tentative Parcel Map (dated March 2021)
that is attached to this staff report.

The applicant shall cause to be filed a parcel map showing monumentation of all property
corners to the satisfaction of the City Engineer in compliance with Section 16.20.020
(Parcel Maps) of Title 16 (Subdivisions) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code. Subdivision
map checking fees shall be paid in full at the time the Parcel Map is submitted for
checking. County Recorder fees shall be paid prior to submittal of the map to the County
Recorder for filing. The Parcel Map must be prepared by a Land Surveyor licensed by the
State of California, or by a Civil Engineer registered by the State of California who is
authorized to practice land surveying. The applicant shall submit to the City Engineer
three (3) copies of the Parcel Map as filed by the County Recorder.

After approval of the Tentative Parcel Map and prior to approval of the Parcel Map, the
subdivider shall enter into a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City in
conformance with Section 16.28.090 (Agreement, Bond, and Cash Deposits for
Improvements) of Title 16 (Subdivision) of the Blue Lake Municipal Code, The
Subdivision Improvement Agreement shall be prepared by the City Attorney, approved
by the City Engineer and Planning Comrission, and adopted by the City Council. To
ensure the subdivision improvements will be constructed, the subdivider shall post 1) a
performance bond, instrument of credit, lien on the property, letter of credit, cash or other
form of security acceptable to the City Council in the amount of 100% of the total
estimated improvement costs; 2) a similar security in the amount of 100% of the labor,
materials, and equipment costs; and 3} a similar security in the amount of 10% of the
costs of improvements to guarantee workmanship for one year. These security interests
shall be approved by the City Attorney as to form, by the City Engineer as to sufficiency,
and accepted by the City Council.

All easements that encumber or are appurtenant to the subdivision shall be shown
graphically on the Parcel Map. Those easements that do not have a metes and bounds
description shall be noted on the Parcel Map and shown as to their approximate location.
The City Engineer shall determine whether the easements shall be for public and/or
private purposes. Other easements may be required which cannot be determined from the



EXHIBIT “A”
To Resolution 4-2021

Tentative Parcel Map at this time. The need for these additional easements may be
determined after a review of improvement plans by the City Engineer.

7. The applicant must meet all requirements of the various City departments including, but
not limited to, the City Manager, Public Works Department, City Engineer, Building
Department, and Planning Department.

8. The applicant must meet all requirements of the City Engineer, including the following:

A) All proposed subdivision improvements (onsite and offsite) shall be reviewed and
approved by the City Engineer.

B) Paved driveways are required for vehicular access to both proposed parcels. The
driveways shall be constructed according to the City’s design specifications.

C) The driveway aprons within the public right-of-way for each proposed parcel
must be ADA compliant.

D) The Parcel Map should identify utility easements that cross the new parcel line
and existing parcel lines.

E) The Parcel Map should identify the source and back up imformation for the
“Found Monuments” shown on the Tentative Map.

9. Pursuant to Municipal Code Section 17.24.100.C.5, “The parking area, aisles and access
drives shall be paved as to provide a durable, dustless surface, except that an alternative
durable, dustless surface may be approved by the City Planner, and shall be so graded
and drained as 1o dispose of surface water without damage to private or public
properties, streets or alleys.” Based on this requirement, both of the proposed parcels
must have off-street parking spaces and driveways that are durable and dustless (e.g.,
concrete, asphalt, permeable pavers, etc.).

INFORMATIONAL NOTES:

The notes below include recommendations from the various City departments that are considered
best practice.

1. Due to the alignment of the proposed driveway on Proposed Parcel 1, it 1s recommended
that a bollard or other protective structure be installed to protect the northeast corner of
the residence from vehicular collision.

2. It is recommended that the sewer connection from Proposed Parcel ! to the City sewer
main in the City-owned parcel to the west (APN 025-141-001) should be covered by an
casement granted by the City.



KES  ZRSEOERLOL il » HEG-0FR 02
TBIPMY c £ RS U g uQrpE

140 1 L1730 L=t
120 §MEA HIY
FiNE0NYD 10 ILYLS “AINNDS LEOSNH
TIAY IMIE 40 A3 THL KE
MYIOIHIN 1271081 0MH
I HEL T HOILDIS

2vYvIavin NHOT

A}

d¥i JAILYLNIL
TUCLPESIO HdY

wor Baas Al odaumSun g 2wy
TPSEDFR ALQLT tard
QI44DPE LLQL}  (auoy4
TL3T5 ¥ ey
I #HINE BN TI0Y VDD (T8
naappy fuen
:HraBy

sy Buiplieg
Nl FAENS uaudolanag pauurd  Buior
SEQYEAL-L04 FHWNK DU

S2554 W3 'nywYang
L2emeg 'd  HEIPRY Bnpey

HHTL =R el
PrOW R GO2 F 91| HINBRY WIS
L2 L-520 SEY
stacfpen ue!  salieg
YAYA 19304

GELD &N 7R
Legfiuyng N #FFa

LEIR 1]

ING

ARG [ GBS pETEG W pUT
"WRLIALP S FPLR IO T AD BRTORI0 3R ded $13)

ANIWILVLS S, HOAIAENS

[06° 2 | J1wDE
AV ALINIDEA

e
PLY-FUTEI TR 2 PN B AT RPNV E ST E S |
W AardiunD) Sudauny 15am TIIGY P L 3L AQ
Pz GQIFALISI WD PATTE MG #IE SUDI0]
(TR0 aTEMAS U FAHEM ALTGBUR Buki]

“lerim O ivy

1#4GE PITO SN A4 i) pasiap L
RETIR -8 LEH TYFTTRITR AT o
FULILGYLIO (§8 AT buREY citiga o) JEE 150
Patiad 'y | DDE P90 12UR) Y 1] papatradng

By | i, LR L€ A] iy 30udny proe|iTg Ut
JaEIG § 4T JUALAE B0 I §0'p] fo LOnTAX uE uD
P LMD GF CAYN ME TLORRAN] | Zor deenigay
up SuABeng a T et A praua)pd fanng pryg

T U patdg Ll 109) | 1T ooy s Ageri oo

sy weday apa] Ageus
PITS 1EOEES P PHIFR AHSEZDEZOLI-DHAS
LR T L THE N TH )
AFRAREY AQ 1ARITY ARLIL URHLE R B PR WSSl
PHOIar |0 MEILER DL kR PUR § aliE ATPLRGY

padnd wyl o waziae Apoe et
B UG EMNE 01 URGHY 3T TAN R PORNEYITE
o uBU|FlIAG 2GGITIY CURUT SROPIETRG I 0

AL EIOSTIOD ey
[T ARUAASET) ] Fed |G | [ Bu- sy s et
| Leal¥ punil g1 i3 40458 $rar
Gy ANt A DL R b0 U uways 4) Ap o 3]

[} LTINS AIRG LAty Pl

GrLECIEL T
Q101 LT My
AL MR T BTG 0 ]

(BRI KDk WS

A

Y D~ 45 6356
2 T3V 0350408

Lig ]
SN A0 G

PR e T N T

E-850F{-466( 200
ZEO LY 120 NdY -
TRRAEN JO nucmd

iRt R ]
ne| e
3 ja st

Bz

SOV HLD~4'S 2608
1 130%d Q350404
[rCatn Eark

Ea]
LW IO e

FINLT iy

T T V

LIILAIE TS [w]
TR A NIV AN LT
APTNYEID WIS ALY a«@
Wren e ap
WL A mi}
AradaH v
FHM MaPaLt G M@
BOHHINY AP HLU THAM ALRLA nl_—_ﬁ!n.l\\
Wizin oel m
VLA 2I6LYIT g
FINFIALL, 2l 1]
INLELYY £
TNIERLYIT AN LTS 1]
TINA INOILT T * Ha D e R LD ELa L

THPOLNDS GO TXILETY

HOLwIT A

AIrlvy Lkl 40 $F300

WAL D3SO0

A BTN

STHILYIZ AV 2 L2
el v Ro LN oy
PRI LN
FINITAIRL LTHAE
LHIATSOM ARG O L]
L EBEN]

WINPT G 0 AN 2] AT PALAG 4) 15 a4l
Wlh 0 AU B ) CBLnE et b aed
P VT YRGS PuT IR By O Aa it L o]
iz epiay 1 sadolana) pavur g peaal 5| |#red sl

A Ly A reodand Ar
LOLMNASLDD AFYLE Du g BRI fedu Byl o) andaa
st Akl "pasiuras M 0 Padndocd ad dani oY

SHRIERITAL rud) wibLiE T 4L pRCO[RAE RpTalE
BT Pa0201d 4327 PIOY B B aq FM
Lwnd pASREDad wgs 01 SER00W T [0 R keI Ry o
LRALVEGNE PRSOEGIE B TAEILSRN St 2UTPLRE LY

SILON 193O%d

I

FI0IE 2L I SIRI e
EEIE Ll

IS DIHVED

[20T-p Uonnjosay 01
W LIGTHXA

)




CITY OF BLUE LAKE

Post Office Box 458, 111 Greenwood Road, Blue Lake, CA 95525
Phone 707.668.5655 Fax 707.668.5916

STAFF REPORT

DATE: November 11,2021

APPLICATION #: 312-161-018/2020

APPLICANT: City of Blue Lake

PROPERTY OWNER: City of Blue Lake

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The City of Blue Lake is proposing development of a Bike Park on parcel 312-161-018 (no address
assigned). The project site is located in the Powers Creek District (formerly Blue Lake Business
Park) on the north side of Taylor Way. The Bike Park will include a dirt pump track, paved pump
track, kids dirt track, trail improvements, drinking fountain, bathroom, bike repair station, lighting,
wood perimeter fence, benches, and utility improvements (new electric line, new water line, and
new sewer line). See attached Conceptual Site Plan for additional information about the project
proposal.

PROJECT LOCATION: North of Taylor Way in the Powers Creek District (no address assigned)
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL #: 312-161-018

ZONING: Opportunity (O)

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: Mixed-Use (MU}

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Categorically exempt per CEQA Guidelines Section 15332 (Class 32) exempting projects
characterized as in-fill development when certain criteria can be met. This criteria is met by the
proposed project for the following reasons: 1) the project is consistent with the City’s General Plan

and Municipal Code; 2) the project site is located in City limits on a property that is less than 5
acres (~3 acres); 3) the project site does not contain habitat for rare, threatened, or endangered

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA 1 1141172021



species; 4) the project will not result in significant impacts related to traffic, noise, air quality, or
water quality; and 5) the site can be served by all required utilities and public services.

SITE CHARACTERISTICS/HISTORY:

The property containing the project site is approximately 3 acres and has been vacant for several
decades. Historically, the site was developed as part of the McIntosh Mill. Vegetation on the
project site consists of grasses, shrubs, and a single tree. The majority of the site is relatively flat,
with a berm along the southern boundary of the site. The site is bound to the north by the Powers
Creek District trail and the Powers Creek riparian corridor, to the east by vacant land, to the south
by Taylor Way and Blue Lake Power, and to the west by a gravel mining operation and contractor’s
yard. All utilities are adjacent to and available to service the project site. Vehicular access for the
site is currently off of the Powers Creek District trail, which is only used for emergency access and
maintenance activities.

e

Aerial Photo of the Project Site

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA 2 11/11/2021



STAFF COMMENTS:

This project was sent out for referral to the City Manager, Public Works Department, Building
Inspector, City Engineer, Volunteer Fire District, and local Tribes (Wiyot Tribe, Bhue Lake
Rancheria, and Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria). The comments from the various
departments and Tribes are listed below.

City Manager
No comments were received from the City Manager during the requested referral comment period.

Public Works Department
The Public Works Department responded to the referral identifying the water, sewer, and
stormwater infrastructure adjacent to the project site. No concerns were expressed about the project.

Building Official
No comments were received from the Building Official during the requested referral comment
period.

City Engineer

The City Engineer provided the following comments on the project:

1. Drainage needs to be addressed in the final design/grading plan.
2. The proposed wooden fence will need to be setback farther from the north side of the
sewer lift station to provide a minimum 5-foot clearance for access and maintenance.

Volunteer Fire District
No comments were received from the Fire District during the requested referral comment period.

Local Tribes
The Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPQ) of the Blue Lake Rancheria responded to the
referral with the following comments:

1. The project should be conditioned to require mmplementation of an Inadvertent
Discovery Protocol.
2. The Blue Lake THPO office should be notified in advance of construction start up, so

that a formal inspection may be conducted during ground disturbing activity.

The Wiyot Tribe THPO responded to the referral stating that they concurred with the
recommendations of the Blue Lake Rancheria THPO. The recommendations of the Blue Lake
Rancheria and Wiyot Tribe have been included as conditions of approval for the project.

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY:

The project site has a General Plan Designation of Mixed-Use (MU). The purpose of the MU
Designation is to allow a convenient business and residential environment in areas where multiple
activities and an increased degree of pedestrian orientation are considered desirable. There are several
policies in the General Plan Land Use Element that encourage the development of open space and
recreational uses in the Power Creek District and adjacent to the trail along Powers Creek. The project

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA 3 11/11/2021



proposes the development of a recreational facility in the Powers Creek District on an area of vacant
land that has limited development potential due to its irregular shape. As such, the proposed project is
determined to be consistent with the General Plan.

ZONING ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE:

The project site has a Zoning Classification of Opportunity (O), which is described in Section
17.16.111 of the Blue Lake Municipal Code. As stated in Section 17.16.111: “The Opportunity
Zone or O Zone is intended to allow for the compatible and beneficial mixture of commercial,
manufacturing, and residential uses in a single structure or on a single or multiple sites in a
manner consistent with the City’s General Plan Goals and Policies.” Recreation and Education
uses are principally permitted in the O Zone. This use type allows trails and outdoor recreational
uses (e.g., sports fields, sports complex, outdoor performance venues, etc.), public and commercial
recreational facilities, and schools and training programs in the areas of arts, crafts and light
manufacturing. The project proposes the development of a recreational facility in the O Zone, which
is a principally permitted use, on an area of vacant land that has limited development potential due to
its irregular shape. As such, the proposed project is consistent with the allowable uses in the O Zone.

The proposed project must comply with the development standards of the O Zone, which are
intended to help integrate buildings and other improvements with the topography and landscape to
create a unified environment which is harmonious with the adjacent visual panorama. Below is a
discussion of the project’s compliance with the O Zone development standards.

Setbacks
The setback requirements in the O Zone relate to proximity to the Powers Creek corridor and the
trail that runs parallel to Powers Creek. The requirements state the following:

+ No building or parking or storage area shall be constructed within 50 feet horizontal of the
centerline of the main branch of Powers Creek or its tributaries {e.g., South Fork Powers
Creek). The zone thus created, 50 feet horizontal from the centerline of Powers Creek
outward, shall be preserved primarily as an area of riparian vegetation. Trails, art
installations, interpretive signs, lighting, benches, picnic areas, and habitat enhancement
projects are allowable within this setback area.

e No building or parking or storage area shall be constructed within 25 feet horizontal of the
closest edge of the trail that runs parallel to Powers Creek. This area is intended to be
reserved for open space and other amenities such as landscaping, art, and benches.

The project does not propose buildings, parking, or storage areas within 50 feet horizontal of
Powers Creek or within 25 feet horizontal of the closest edge of the trail that runs paralle] to Powers
Creek. Portions of the pump tracks and kids dirt track, wooden perimeter fence, and benches would
occur within the setback from the trail. These features of the Bike Park are considered amenities
that are allowable within the setback from the trail. The buildings proposed by the project include a
bathroom and bike repair station, which are well over 25 feet from the edge of the trail. Therefore,
the proposed project 1s consistent with the setback requirements of the O Zone.

Building Coverage
The maximum building coverage i the O Zone is 70%. The buildings proposed by the project are
the bathroom and bike repair station, which are relatively small compared to the size of the project

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA, 4 11/11/2021



site. As such, the buildings proposed by the project are estimated to be well under the 70%
maximum building coverage requirement. Therefore, the proposed project is consistent with the
building coverage requirement of the O Zone.

Maximum Building Height

The building height in the O Zone for the area north of Taylor Way relates to proximity to the trail
that runs parallel to Powers Creek. Building height limits for properties north of Taylor Way are
allowed to increase with distance from the trail. The buildings proposed by the project are the
bathroom and bike repair station, which are anticipated to be one-story and no greater than 16 feet
in height. Based on the anticipated height of the proposed buildings, they would comply with the
strictest building height standard in the O Zone, which states, “Nof exceeding 25 feet vertical within
50 feet horizontal of the closest edge of the trail that runs parallel to Powers Creek.” Therefore, the
proposed project 1s consistent with the maximum building height of the O Zone.

Off-Street Parking
The parking requirements in the O Zone state the following:

e Sufficient onsite parking, as prescribed in Sections 17.24.100 and 17.24.230, shall be
provided for employees, visitors and company vehicles.

e The City Planner may waive off-street parking otherwise required if sufficient parking is
proposed to be provided at a common off-site parking area. This shall not apply to
accessible off-street parking spaces required by the American with Disabilities Act (ADA)
or California Building Code.

Municipal Code Section 17.24.100 (Off-Street Parking Facilities) does not have parking
requirements specific to bike parks or other outdoor recreational uses. The parking requirements in
this section for “Institutional, Educational, and Civic” uses relate to the number of beds, seats,
students, teachers, and employees. Parking for the Bike Park is proposed to initially occur along
Taylor Way, as it currently occurs for users of the Powers Creek District trail system. City staff is
anticipating striping diagonal parking on the north side of Taylor Way to increase the availability of
on-street parking. Eventually off-street parking would be available at a common parking area
directly east of the proposed Bike Park. Based on the lack of off-street parking requirements
specific to the proposed use, and the availability of on-street parking along Taylor Way, the project
is determined to be compliant with the off-street parking requirements of the Municipal Code.

Landscaping
The landscaping requirements in the O Zone state the following:

A landscaping plan will be required for each site showing the locations, names, and initial sizes
of plant materials, irrigation plan and groundcover materials. Ongoing maintenance and
replacement (when needed) is a requirement of all uses within the O Zone. The City Planner
will review each landscaping plan for approval. Landscape requirements are defined in Section
17.24.240. Where possible, required landscaping areas may also serve as areas for infiltration of
stormwater runoff, subject to review and approval by the City Engineer.

The City Manager has indicated that landscaping at the site will include several shade trees and
ornamental shrubs. Native plants will be used for the proposed landscaping as much as possible. A
landscaping plan will be developed for the Bike Park as part of the final design/grading plan, which

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA. 3 11/11/2021



will be subject to review and approval by the City Planner. If any landscaping areas are proposed to
serve as infiltration areas for stormwater runoff, review and approval will be required by the City

Engineer.

Site Plan Approval

In the O Zone, Site Plan Approval is required by the Planning Commission for all new
development. Section 17.24.250(F) of the City’s Municipal Code lists the “principals to be
followed’ for Site Plan Approval. Section 17.24.250(F) states, “Areas of aesthetic and site plan
consideration shall include, but are not necessarily limited to the following:

1.

10.

Review of buildings or structures for scale, mass, proportion, use of materials,
relationship to adjacent elements, and relationship to the conununity as a whole.

Review of proposed exterior color and material application with relationship to adjacent
architectural or natural elements.

Review of proposed location, height, and materials of walls, fences, hedges, and screen
plantings to insure harmony with adjacent development or to conceal storage areaq,
utility installations, or other unsightly development. The planting of ground cover or
other surfacing to prevent dust and erosion. The unnecessary destruction of existing
healthy trees and woody vegetation.

Review of location, color, size, height, lighting, and landscaping of outdoor advertising
signs and structures, in relation to traffic hazards and the appearance and harmony with
the environment.

Review of location, height, and material of walls, fences, hedges and screen plantings.

Review of site layout considering the orientation and location of buildings and open
spaces in relation fo the physical characteristics of the site, the character of the
neighborhood, the appearance and harmony of the buildings with adjacent development
and the surrounding landscape.

Review of the effect of the site development plan on traffic conditions on abutting streets.
The layout of vehicular and pedestrian entrances, exists, drives, and walkways. The
adequacy of off-street parking facilities to prevent traffic congestion. The location,
arrangement, and dimensions of truck loading and unioading facilities. The circulation
patterns within the boundaries of the development. The surfacing and lighting of off-
street parking facilities.

Review of the effect of the site development plan on the adequacy of storm and surface
water drainage.

Review of the location, height, size, wattage, and shielding of outdoor lighting.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as restricting or curtailing any of the
powers of the Planning Commission of the City of Blue Lake.”

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA 6 11/11/2021



CITY PLANNER RECOMMENDATION:

If the Planning Commission wishes to approve this project application, then specific findings that the
project is consistent with the City's General Plan and Municipal Code should be made. Conditions of
approval, addressing the issues contamed herein and in the referral letters, should be required.

Staff recommends approval of the project, as submitted with the following Conditions of Approval:

l.

Approval is for the project as illustrated on the Conceptual Site Plan attached to the Staff
Report. Any substantial changes or modifications may require an amendment to this Site
Plan Approval application.

The City must meet all requirements of and obtain all required permits from the Building
Department for the proposed mmprovements.

The City shall meet the requirements of the City Engineer including, but not limited to, the
following:

A) Drainage needs to be addressed in the final design/grading plan.
B) The proposed wooden fence will need to be setback farther from the north side of the
sewer lift station to provide a minimum $ foot clearance for access and maintenance.

The City shall meet the requirements of the office of the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal
Historic Preservation Officer (THPO):

A) The project should be conditioned to require implementation of an Inadvertent
Discovery Protocol, which requires the following:

“If archaeological resources are encountered during permitted or nonpermitted
grading activities in the City of Blue Lake, all onsite work shall cease in the
immediate area and within a 50-foot buffer of the discovery location. A qualified
locally experienced archaeologist will be retained to evaluate and assess the
significance of the discovery, and develop and implement an avoidance or mitigation
plan, as appropriate. For discoveries known or likely fo be associated with Native
American heritage (prehistoric sites and select historic period sites), the Tribal
Historic Preservation Officers (THPOs) for the Blue Lake Rancheria, Bear River
Band of Rohnerville Rancheria, and Wiyot Tribe are to be contacted immediately fo
evaluate the discovery and, in consultation with the project proponent or property
owner, City of Blue Lake, and consulting archaeologist, develop a treatment plan in
any instance where significant impacits per the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) cannot be avoided. Prehistoric materials may include, but are not limited to,
obsidian or chert flakes, tools, locally davkened midden soils, groundstone artifacts,
shellfish or faunal remains, and human burials. Historic archaeological discoveries
may include, but are not limited to, 19th century building foundations; structural
remains; or concentrations of artifacls made of glass, ceramic, metal or other
materials found in buried pits, old wells or privies. Should known or suspected
Native American skeletal remains or burials be inadvertently discovered, the
provisions of Section 7050.5 of the California Health & Safety Code and Section

Blue Lake Bike Park SPA 7 11/11/2021



5097.98 of  the Public Resources Code shall  apply (see  at
htip:/fiwww.nahe.ca.gov/profguide. html}.”

b) The office of the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO)
should be notified in advance of construction start up, so that a formal inspection
may be conducted during ground disturbing activity.

Biue Lake Bike Park SPA 8 1171172021



n-x-u.ﬂ:_f.-ﬂwﬁuf.v“._“.”“—“.h\.:\.:._l_ mNmnm _{U -wqu MDJm LO \r.‘h_u
whou | G NOILVIDOSSY NYId ¥ NLdIONOD
LSYOD dODAMAIA Hyvd 38 3IAYT ANTE

u—,q__._._ HOTAVE

-

|

3

NN YL ONUSIKT
Y4 B .

NIT HINES Ez.l..\\.

BN EALYM AN

3

HODHHIYE—

S |IHISI0 mmw%u o
SN2 w.%.m%m.l....o.

ROUWIS Hivady S
T WHORAN

P

Ny

TIveL N¥HESIOId Fd—

THH 14Y1S g3ivadnd
SINIOd 11X3 ONV AYLNT 34YS
SIUNLYI JAISSIHS0Ud ANV 33YS
SAILTILR dILYIJ0SSY GNY SIHINTIWY MIN

INIWJ0T3A30 L21HLS10 SHIMO QNS FLYHOSH0IN
SHILC0IS ANV SAYV0E 'S3HIE Y04 MIVYLDWAd d3AVd
INSHNOHIAND AMANI IS ATIWYS 'SNOILJC AN 1YL Ot

a 8 % 9% % 4 9

IS 0L 10N

AUV d IMIG IMVT dN719




RESOLUTION NO. 5-2021

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BLUE LAKE
APPROVING A SITE PLAN APPROVAL APPLICATION FOR THE CITY OF BLUE
LAKE TO ALLOW A BIKE PARK

WHEREAS, the City of Blue Lake filed a Site Plan Approval application in 2020 for
construction of a Bike Park on parcel 312-161-018 (no address assigned). The project site is
located in the Powers Creek District (formerly Blue Lake Business Park) on the north side of
Taylor Way in the Opportunity (O) zone. The Bike Park will include a dirt pump track, paved
pump track, kids dirt track, trail improvements, drinking fountain, bathroom, bike repair station,
lighting, wood perimeter fence, benches, and utility improvements (new electric line, new water
line, and new sewer ling). Application materials included a Conceptual Site Plan (received
9/9/21);

WHEREAS, City planning staff has reviewed the submitted application and evidence
and has referred the application and evidence to involved reviewing city departments and
agencies for site inspections, comments, and recommendations; and

WHEREAS, after posting of the meeting agenda, the matter came on for consideration
before the Blue Lake Planning Commission at their regularly scheduled meeting on November
15, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Planning Commission of the City of Blue
Lake as follows: :

1. The Planning Commission finds that the project is categorically exempt pursuant
to Section 15332 (Class 32) of the City’s duly adopted CEQA guidelines exempting projects
characterized as in-fill development when certain criteria can be met, These criteria are met by
the proposed project for the following reasons:

A. The project site is consistent with the City’s General Plan and Municipal

Code.
B. The project site is located in City limits on a site that is less than 5 acres
(~3 acres).
C The project site does not contain habitat for rare, threatened, or
endangered species.
D. The project will not result in significant impacts related to traffic, noise,
air quality, or water quality.
E. The site can be served by all required utilities and public services.
2. The project is consistent with the City of Blue Lake General Plan and Municipal
Code.
3. The Planning Commission of the City of Blue Lake hereby grants and approves

the Site Plan Approval application for the City of Blue Lake for construction of a Bike Park,
subject to the conditions set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and as



RESOLUTION NO. 5-2021

set forth in the Conceptual Site Plan, which is marked as Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made
a part hereof.

INTRODUCED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED this 15" day of November 2021, by the
following vote:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
Chairman, Planning Commission,
City of Blue Lake

ATTEST:

Secretary, Planning Commission

w2



EXHIBIT “A”
To Resolution 5-2021

Conditions of Approval

Approval is for the project as illustrated on the Conceptual Site Plan attached to the Staff
Report. Any substantial changes or modifications may require an amendment to this Site
Plan Approval application.

The City must meet all requirements of and obtain all required permits from the Building
Department for the proposed improvements.

The City shall meet the requirements of the City Engineer including, but not limited to,
the following:

A)
B)

Drainage needs to be addressed in the final design/grading plan.

The proposed wooden fence will need to be setback farther from the north side of
the sewer lift station to provide a minimum 5-foot clearance for access and
maintenance.

The City shall meet the requirements of the office of the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal
Historic Preservation Officer (THPO):

A)

The project should be conditioned to require implementation of an Inadvertent
Discovery Protocol, which requires the following:

“If archaeological resources are encountered during permitied ov nonpermitted
grading activities in the City of Blue Lake, all onsite work shall cease in the
immediate area and within a 50-foot buffer of the discovery location. A qualified
locally experienced archaeologist will be retained to evaluate and assess the
significance of the discovery, and develop and implement an avoidance or
mitigation plan, as appropriate. For discoveries known or likely to be associated
with Native American heritage (prehistoric sites and select historic period sites),
the Tribal Historic Preservation Officers (THPQOs) for the Blue Lake Rancheria,
Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria, and Wiyot Tribe are to be contacted
immediately to evaluate the discovery and, in consultation with the project
proponent or property owner, City of Blue Lake, and consulting archaeologist,
develop a treatment plan in any instance where significant impacts per the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) cannot be avoided. Prehistoric
materials may include, but are not limited to, obsidian or chert flakes, tools,
locally darkened midden soils, groundstone artifacts, shellfish or faunal remains,
and human burials. Historic archaeological discoveries may include, but are not
limited to, 19th century building foundations; structural remains; or
concentrations of artifacts made of glass, ceramic, metal or other materials found
in buried pits, old wells or privies. Should known or suspecied Native American
skeletal remains or burials be inadvertently discovered, the provisions of Section
7050.5 of the California Health & Safety Code and Section 5097.98 of the Public
Resources Code shall apply (see at htip://www.nahc.ca.gov/profguide.htmi).”

1



EXHIBIT “A”
To Resolution 5-2021

B) The office of the Blue Lake Rancheria Tribal Historic Preservation Officer
(THPO) should be notified in advance of construction start up, so that a formal
inspection may be conducted during ground disturbing activity.



DHON LSO MO TN 204N

TIVIYIRY

G2ZSGE VI IV 38 40 ALID

Tm NY14 VN1 d3ONGD 14V dd 12075 uonniosoy o3
LSVOD A0 | e AdVd A8 IAVT IS o LIGIHXA
h___|mz_,w HINIS wzm.m_xw, \Imz_._ YA ONILSIXS _ .ﬁ.q_ M HOTIAWL ﬂ« ..........

TR 2dVLS 03LVATTS

SINIDd LIX3 GNY AHING 34VS

SIUNLVIH FMSSIHIOHd INY 24VS

SN QILVYIZ0SSY GNY SAILINIWY MEN
INZWd013A30 1314ESId SHIMGd OLNI 31YHOSHDINI
SHILC0JS ONY SAYY0E ‘S3HIE H03 HOVHLIWNNG GIAVd
INIWNOBIANT ATANIIA AHINYS 'SNCLLE0 ATON TN O1%

IS QL 10N

AUVd MG IMV1 INT14g




